
ALBURY 
Eldeberie (xi cent.), Aldebur (xiii. cent.), Aldebury (xiv cent.), Aldbury (sometimes in 
xviii cent.). 

Albury is a parish 5 miles east of Guildford and 7 miles west of Dorking. The parish is 
bounded on the north by Merrow and West Clandon, on the west by St. Martha's and 
Wonersh, on the south by Cranleigh, on the east by Shere. A detached portion, the 
manor of Wildwood, used to lie in Alfold to the south, and detached portions of 
Cranleigh, Shere, and Wonersh lay in Albury. These were transferred to the parishes 
surrounding them respectively in 1882.  

The existing parish contains 4,405 acres of land and 14 of water. It is 6 miles from 
north to south, and nowhere more than 2 miles from east to west. It is of the typical 
form and soils of the parishes to the south of the chalk ridge. The northern boundary 
is on the crest of the chalk, the village is in the valley upon the sand south of the 
chalk hill, but close to it, and the parish extends across the sand on to the Atherfield 
clay and Wealden clay for a short distance, to the south. There is open common on 
the chalk. Southwards the extensive heaths of Blackheath and Farley Heath are partly 
or wholly in the parish. The continuation of the high ridge of Greensand, of which 
Leith Hill, Holmbury, and Ewhurst Hills are part, further eastward, reaches across the 
southern end of the parish, but falls away into the valley through which the Guildford 
and Horsham line runs, bending northward to form its eastern side. The views here 
across the Weald, and westward to Hascombe Hill and Hindhead beyond, are very 
beautiful. Below the escarpment of these hills part of Smithwood Common is in 
Albury. But it is to the north, on the chalk, at Newlands Corner, where the old road 
from Shere to Guildford runs up the down, and where Albury Downs reach 600 ft. 
above the sea, that the most famous view in the parish is to be seen. Its beauty 
consists not in extent merely, but in the broken foreground, east and west along the 
valley between the chalk and the sand. Some very ancient yew trees mark the line of 
the old road, commonly called Pilgrims' Way, along the slopes of the downs. The 
ancient bridle-way over St. Martha's Hill comes down into Albury through a deep 
lane. The modern road from Guildford to Dorking traverses the parish, and also the 
Redhill and Reading branch of the South Eastern Railway. Chilworth and Albury 
station is just outside the parish. 

The Tillingbourne stream runs through the parish from east to west, working two 
mills. It is augmented by the water from the deep springs in the chalk which form the 
Shireburn Ponds, deep pools at the foot of the slope of the down surrounded by 
trees. The upper and more picturesque is usually called the Silent Pool. The springs 
which supply them are supposed to have connexion with those which break out on 
the other side of the chalk, due north, in Clandon Park. The operations of the Woking 



Water Company, who have tapped the chalk between them, have undoubtedly led to 
a diminution of the supply in the Shireburn Ponds. 

Albury parish is somewhat rich in antiquities. At Newlands Corner is a large barrow, 
not marked on the Ordnance map, and neolithic flints are fairly numerous on and 
below the hills. The name Harrowshill borne by part of the down may indicate an 
AngloSaxon holy place. But the most considerable antiquity of the parish is on Farley 
Heath, near the road from Albury to Cranleigh. The banks, with a very slight exterior 
ditch forming three sides of a quadrangular inclosure, are fairly well marked, 
especially to the west. The east bank is not now visible. The inclosure is not exactly 
rectangular, but the north-west angle is slightly acute, the south-west slightly obtuse. 
The sides are 220 yds., and the interior space must consequently have been 10 acres. 
In the middle of this was a smaller quadrangular inclosure which Manning and Bray 
describe as of 22 yds. each way. This is now not to be traced, but stone foundations 
are visible where it was, and a great abundance of Roman tiles and some pottery are 
easily found in the whole inclosure. Many Roman coins were found by excavations 
conducted in 1839 and 1840 by the late Mr. Martin Tupper, and it is said British coins 
also. (fn. 1) A gold coin of Verica found here is in private hands. 

When Aubrey wrote he saw, or imagined, the ruins of a Roman temple on the spot, 
and the bases of the two pillars in the south arcade of old Albury Church are reputed 
to have been brought from this place. Further inclosing banks to the east are said to 
have formerly existed. Some of the coins found here by Mr. Tupper, and some found 
afterwards by Mr. Lovell, the schoolmaster of Albury, were sent to the British 
Museum. A systematic exploration, and a classification of remains, and pending this a 
cessation of the practice of taking road metal from the surface of the common, are 
much to be desired. The Roman road traced in Ewhurst parish would, if continued, 
have come close by here, and went on no doubt either to Newlands Corner or to the 
gap in the hills at Guildford. This is the Old Bury which gave its name to the parish. 

The old village of Albury had grown up by the banks of the Tillingbourne, and partly 
within what is now Albury Park, around the village green, which adjoined the 
churchyard; but Mr. Drummond, in 1842, finally removed it bodily half a mile to the 
westward, leaving the ancient church intact, and built a new parish church in the new 
village that grew up at what formerly had been known as the hamlet of Weston 
Street.  Albury Park also used to extend on to the chalk hill above Shireburn Lane, 
over what is now farming land. The road up the hill was called Old Park Pales 
Lane. (fn. 2) Early in the 19th century a Maypole still stood at the corner where 
Blackheath Lane joins the west end of Weston Street. 

Albury Park, the Surrey seat of the Duke of Northumberland, K.G., is famed both for 
the sylvan beauty of its park and for its gardens. The magnificent trees—especially a 
noble avenue of old beeches, some huge walnut trees and clumps of hawthorns—the 



irregular levels of velvety turf across which stretch long vistas, including peeps of the 
little Tillingbourne stream and of the lake before the house, with its swans; the 
halfruined ancient church, almost hidden by its stately cedars, and the house—make 
this park, though its area is but small, one of the loveliest in Surrey. The gardens also 
merit the praise bestowed on them by William Cobbett: 'Take it altogether,' he says, 
'this certainly is the prettiest garden I ever beheld. There was taste and sound 
judgment at every step in the laying out of this place.' The famous John Evelyn, in 
1667, at the request of Thomas Howard, Earl of Arundel and Duke of Norfolk, 
'designed the plot of the canal and garden, with a crypt through the hill.' Although 
the canal has been drained, a terrace of beautiful green sward, about a quarter of a 
mile in length, remains, together with the 'crypt,' and a wonderful yew hedge, 'or 
rather,' as Cobbett writes, 'a row of small yew trees, the trunks of which are bare for 
about 8 or 10 ft. high, and the tops of which form one solid head of about 10 ft. high, 
while the bottom branches come out on each side of the row about 8 ft. horizontally. 
This hedge or row,' he adds, 'is a quarter of a mile long. There is a nice, hard sand 
road under this species of umbrella; and summer and winter, here is a most 
delightful walk.' (fn. 3) 

http://www.british-history.ac.uk/vch/surrey/vol3/pp72-77  from British History on 
line. Originally published in 1911 

 

 

Albury Parish Council 
The Parish Council meets in the Memorial Library 

on the first Monday of the month apart from 
August when there is no meeting.  Members of 

the public are welcome to attend. 
www.albury.org.uk   plus many useful links 

Clerk to the Parish Council: 
Ms. Joanna Cadman: joanna@joannacadman.com 

01483 268627 
 

 



 

 

Map of the Parish of Albury 

For Information on  Roads, Bridleways and Footpaths and a huge amount 
more on all aspects of the county, take a look at  Surrey County Councils 
interactive map. Be patient and it takes a while to understand how it 
works but it is worth it. 
http://surreymaps.surreycc.gov.uk/public/viewer.asp 
 

  



Accommodation 
The Drummond Arms 
The Street, Albury 
www.thedrummondarms.co.uk 
01483 202039 
 
Manor House Hotel 
Newlands Corner 
www.manaorhouse-hotel.co.uk 
01483 222624 
 
Lockhurst Hatch Farm 
Farley Green 
www.lockhurst-hatch-farm.co.uk 
01483 202689 
 
Hurtwood Hotel 
Peaslake 
 
 
 
 

Buses 
Compass Buses no 32 Redhill to 
Guildford 
Via  Dorking, Shere,  Albury and Shalford         
Times:  
http://www.compass-
travel.co.uk/download/        westsussex-
surrey-bus-services/032.pdf                                
 
 

Car Wash 
Merrow:   BP Petrol Garage:  machine 
Burpham:   BP Petrol garage: hand wash 
  Sainsburys:  hand wash 
Guildford:  Millbrook car park:  hand wash 
 
 

Cashpoints 
White Horse Pub, Shere:  Infocash 
 
Cranleigh:  Lloyds, HSBC, NatWest, 
Nationwide, Co-op, Barclays, Sainsburys, 
Cranley Hotel 
 
Merrow:  Lloyds Bank 
 

 Charity Shops Chemists 
 

Churches Citizens Advice 
Clubs and Societies Council Offices 

 
Councillors 



Doctors Surgery 
 
Hospitals 

Eating and Drinking 

Post Office and shops Sports Clubs 
Refuse and Recycling Taxis 
 

                               

                 

 

 

                                                           


